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Corporate Governance Statement

Corporate governance is the process by which banks are directed and controlled with the objective of increasing shareholders
value and satisfying shareholders. This is achieved by establishing a system of clearly defined authorities and responsibilities
which result in the system of internal controls that is regularly tested to ensure effectiveness.

The Bank is committed to the principles of corporate governance and conducts its business in accordance with generally
accepted best practices. The Bank has intensified focus on regulations, compliance, standardisation and professionalism to lay
strong foundation for effective corporate governance. Therefore, the Directors confirm that;

» The meetings of Board of Directors are held at least once in a quarter.

s The affairs of the Bank are regularly being monitored by the Committees of the Board by holding meetings at least once in
a quarter.

« The positions of Chairman and Managing Director are held by different persons.

+« The Board with their knowledge and vast professional experience are supplementing the performance of the Bank by
executive management.

In the year under review, the Bank complied with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines on corporate
governance.

The Bank's governance framework enables the Bank's Boards to fulfil the role of providing oversight and strategic counsel in
balance with its responsibility to ensure conformance with regulatory requirements and risk tolerance. It also provides the
parameters for delegating authority.

Board of Directors
Board charter and work plan

The composition of the Board is set out on page 2. The Board comprises of five non-executive directors, two executive
directors and is chaired by a non-executive Chairperson. All non-executive directors are independent of management. The
Board has varied and extensive skills in the areas of banking, business management, accountancy and information
communication and technology. The directors’ responsibilities are set out in the statement of directors responsibilities on page
12. The Directors are responsible for the development of internal financial controls which provide safeguards against material
misstatements and fraud and also for the fair presentation of the financial statements.

The Chairperson provides the overall leadership to the Board without limiting the principle of collective responsibility for Board
decisions. The Chairperson acts as the link between the Board and the Managing Director and plays a lead role in consensus
building between the Board members, the Managing Director and Senior Management. The Chairperson has the casting vote
on all decisions of the Board. The Board has delegated the authority for day to day management to the Managing Director. It
however retains the overall responsibility for financial and operating decisions and monitoring performance of Senior
Management.

The key function of the Board is the identification of current and future risks including operational risk, liquidity risk, regulatory
risks, legal risk, reputational risk, market risk and credit risk and to ensure that the necessary systems and controls are in place
to enable such risks to be measured, controlled and effectively monitored. The Board has established a management structure,
which clearly defines roles, responsibilities and reporting lines. Directors are required to disclose all areas of confiict of interest
to the Board and are excluded from voting on such areas of conflict. The Board has access to the company secretary and legal
counsel.

Committees of the board
The Board has appointed various sub-commitiees to which it has delegated certain responsibilities with the chairman of the

sub-committees reporting to the Board. The specific matters for which delegated authority has been given are set out in each
Board Committee's terms of reference, which are reviewed annually.
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The Board had delegated authority to five principal Board Committees:

« Board Audit Committee

« Board Credit Committee

= Board Risk Management Committee

+ Board Assets and Liabilities Committee
» Board Compensation Committee

These committees meet at least on a quarterly basis or whenever there are urgent matters to attend to.

All Directors receive regular and timely information about the Bank prior to Board meetings. They also have access to the
Company Secretary for any further information they may require. Directors have unrestricted access to management and the
Bank information as well as resources required to carry out their roles and responsibilities.

Board meetings

The full Board meets at least four times a year. The Board deals with all significant matters including strategic direction for the
Bank ensuring competent management of the business; internal control; compliance with laws and regulations and reporting
performance to shareholders.

During the year under review, the Board meetings were held on the following dates:

+ March 27, 2023

* March 28, 2023

= June 13, 2023

= June 14, 2023

+ September 14, 2023

= September 15, 2023

« December 18, 2023

+ December 19, 2023

Internal controls and risk management
Internal control

The directors are responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the Bank's system of internal control, including internal financial
control. This is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding (a) the safeguarding of assets against
unauthorized use or disposition and (b) the maintenance of proper accounting records and the reliability of financial information
used within the business or for publication. These controls are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives due to circumstances which may reasonably be foreseen and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Internal control framework

Effective corporate governance remains key to the business. The Bank continues to review its internal control framework to
ensure it maintains a strong and effective internal control environment. The effectiveness of the framework has been under
regular review by the senior management.

Director's remuneration

The remuneration to all directors is based on the responsibilities allocated to the directors, and is subject to regular review to
ensure that it adequately compensates them for the time spent on the affairs of the bank. The remuneration paid to the
directors and key management staff is disclosed in Note 27 to the financial statements.

Neither at the end of the financial year nor at any time during the year did there exist any arrangement to which the Bank is a
party whereby directors might acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Bank or any cther
body corporate.

Risk management

The Bank has a structure and process o help identify, assess and manage risks. This process has been in place throughout
the year.
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Corporate social responsibility

Bank of India (Uganda) Limited is committed to the community in which it operates. During the year ended December 31, 2023,
the Bank contributed funds towards good causes.

Relations with the shareholder

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with all shareholders. The Annual General Meeting(AGM) as well
as the published annual report is used as an opportunity to communicate with all shareholders. The Bank gives shareholders
21 days notice for the AGM as provided for in the Companies Act, 2012.

Company secretary

The role of the Secretary is to ensure the Board remains cognizant of its duties and responsibilities. In addition to guiding the
Board on discharging its responsibilities, the Secretary keeps the Board abreast of relevant changes in legislation and
governance best practices. The Bank Secretary also oversees the induction of new Directors as well as the continuous
education of Directors. To enable the Board to function effectively, all Directors have full and timely access to information that
may be relevant to the proper discharge of their duties. This includes information such as announcements, investor
communications and other developments which may affect the Bank and its operations. All Directors have access to the
services of the Secretary

Code and regulations

The Bank operates in a highly regulated environment and is committed to complying with legislation, regulations, and codes of
best practice.

Complying with all applicable legislation, regulations, standards, and codes is integral to the Bank's culture. The Board
delegates responsibility for compliance to management and monitors this through the compliance function. Oversight of
compliance risk management is delegated to the Audit Committee, which annually reviews and approves the compliance plan.
On a quarterly basis, the Audit Committee receives reports from the Compliance function on, among other things, the status of
compliance risk management in the Bank and significant areas of non-compliance. On a quarterly basis, the Audit Committee
also reviews the significant interactions and correspondences with the Regulator. The compliance function and governance
standards are subject to review by internal audit.

Whilst the Bank continues to nurture a strong culture of governance and responsible risk management in line with risk appetite
and governance framework, it is constantly monitoring its practices to ensure that they are best fit for it and serve to enhance
business and community objectives.
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Directors' Report

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the audited financial statements of Bank of India (Uganda)
Limited ("the Bank") for the year ended December 31, 2023, which disclose the state of affairs of the Bank.

Incorporation and commencement of business

The Bank was incorporated on Novemeber 9, 2010. It was granted a banking license by Bank of Uganda on March 13, 2012
and commenced operations on June 18, 2012. Bank of India (Uganda) Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Bank of India, a
renowned International Bank spread across the globe and has more than 5,000 branches in India.

1. Nature of business

The Bank is principally engaged in the business of providing commercial banking services to the general public. The Bank is a
financial institution regulated by Bank of Uganda (BoU) and licensed under the Financial Institutions Act, 2004, and as
amended to conduct commercial banking business.

There have been no material changes to the nature of the Bank’s business from the prior year.

2. Business review

During the year 2023, the total interest income of the Bank increased to UShs 36,892 million from UShs 31,369 million. The
increase was mainly attributed to the increase in the interest income from investments made in government securities and

placements with other financial institutions. The profit before tax increased to UShs 14,268 million from UShs 13,279 million
reflecting the effects of cost control expenditure.

Key performance indicators 2023 2022

UShs "000 UShs '000
Interest income 36,892,120 31,369,764
Net interest income 22,494 318 20,180,693
Profit before tax 14,298,963 13,279,369
Profit for the year 8,086,471 10,041,194
Net assets/ total equity 139,344 671 64,758,194
Return on capital employed (%) 10.26% 20.51%
Results

The results of the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2023 are set out in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 17 and the appropriations there from in the statement of changes in equity on page 19.

3. Share capital

2023 2022
Authorised Number of shares
Ordinary shares 12,000,000 2,700,000
2023 2022 2023 2022
Issued UShs '000 UShs '000 Number of shares
Ordinary shares 12,000,000 27,000,000 12,000,000 2,700,000
Share premium 6 - - -

12,000,006 27,000,000 12,000,000 2,700,000

Refer to note 20 of the financial statements for detail of the movement in authorised and issued share capital.
4, Dividends

No dividends were declared or paid to the shareholders during the year.

6. Directorate

The directors in office during the period were as follows:
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Directors Nationality Changes

Mr. Wenceslaus Rama Makuza Ugandan

Ms. Nayenga Rosetti Nabbumba Ugandan

Ms. Monica Mubezi Katiko Ugandan

Mr. Vikash Krishna Indian Resigned on March 3, 2023
Mr. Sanjay Kumar Khemka indian Resigned on July 25, 2023
Mr. Sameer Ranjan Behera Indian Appointed on January 5, 2023
Ms. Julius Kigundu Ugandan Appointed on July 25, 2023

6.1 Directors’ interests in shares

As at December 31, 2023, no Director held a direct interest in the Bank's ordinary issued share capital.
Interests in shares

7. Directors' benefits

During the period since the last Annual General Meeting of members to the date of this report, no Director has received or
become entitled to receive any benefit other than Directors’ fees and amounts/allowances received under employment
contracts for Executive Directors. The aggregate amount of emoluments for Directors’ services rendered in the financial year is
disclosed under Note 27 to the financial statements. Neither at the end of the financial year nor at any time during the year did
there exist any arrangement to which the institution is a party whereby Directors might acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares or debentures of the Bank or any other body corporate.

8. Capital adequacy

The Bank monitors the adequacy of its capital using ratios established by the Financial Institutions Act, 2004 as amended.
These ratios measure capital adequacy by comparing the Bank's eligible capital with its statement of financial position assets
and off-statement of financial position commitments at a weighted amount to reflect their relative risk.

Assets are weighted according to broad categories of notional credit risk, being assigned a risk weighting according to the
amount of capital deemed to be necessary to support them. Four categories of risk weights (0%, 20%, 50% and 100%) are
applied. e.g. Notes, coins and other cash assets, balances held with Bank of Uganda including securities issued by the
Government of Uganda and securities held under the Bank of Uganda have a zero risk weighting, which means that no capital
is required to support the holding of these assets. Loans and Advances, Property and equipment carry a 100% risk weighting.
Based on the existing guidelines this means that they must be supported by capital equal to 100% of the risk weighted amount.
Other asset categories have intermediate weightings.

Core capital (Tier 1) consists of paid-up share capital, retained profits less non-dealing investments. Supplementary
capital (Tier 2) includes revaluation reserves on property, unencumbered general provisions and non-dealing investments.

Disclosures in respect to capital management and capital adequacy ratios are set out in Note 3.
9. Operating and regulatory environments
Operating environment

The GDP growth in Uganda slowed down to 5.5% in 2023, from an estimated 6.4% in 2022. The slowdown was caused by
subdued private consumption growth, alongside weak outlook for government consumption, due to the World Bank's decision
to suspend funding in response to the Anti-Homosexuality Act. In 2024, growth will pick up to 6.0% as easing monetary
conditions stimulate domestic economic activity, with fixed investment growth remaining particularly strong.

Uganda's banking and financial services industry is expected to grow through 2023 (12.5%) as economic conditions improve
and demand for credit increases. However, tight monetary policy to combat continued global inflation may dampen this. The
non-banking sector remains relatively small, meaning that there is room for expansion over the long term.

Economic growth is expected to continue and boost the Ugandan banking sector, increasing demand for credit and raising
bank profitability. The sector is dominated by a small number of main banks, leaving little room for competitors. However, a
growing middle class, increasing financial inclusion and the emergence of fintech solutions provide opportunities for a shift from
traditional banking services. Tight monetary policy will continue to present headwinds to growth in the medium term.
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The Central banking rate is currently at 9.5% and it is expected to remain at this level to counter continued high inflation and to
support the local currency. Inflation continued throughout the year and ended at around 5.8%, relieving some pressure on
household incomes.

Regulatory environment

Following nearly two decades of ‘financial repression that had seen the commercial banking sector severely restricted, banking
sector liberalization was initiated in the late 1980s. Reforms sought to improve the efficiency of the banking sector, such as the
allocation of credit and limited access to financial services for the wider population, and improve banks' financial soundness.

The regulatory framework by the Bank of Uganda continues to evolve and improve. The deliberate move by regulators across
the African continent to enhance their interaction is expected to see modification and/or enhancements to our domestic
regulation. The specific harmonization around the EAC partner states on various areas of regulation is also expected to
increase in order to ensure compliance with all key external legislation. We have scaled up the capacity and capability in our
Compliance function that provides oversight and guidance on all compliance matters. However, more importantly we have
focused on building a culture of compliance across the Bank. At the core of this culture is that all staff must commit to living the
4 core values of the Bank and having this message of individual accountability well understood across the Bank. We continue
to ensure that our standing with regulators remains strong.

10 Corporate governance

The Bank's Corporate Governance philosophy encompasses not only regulatory and legal requirements, but also several best
practices aimed at a high level of business ethics, effective supervision and enhancement of value for all the stakeholders. The
corporate governance framework is based on an effective and independent Board, the separation of the Board's supervisory
role from the Executive Management and the constituticn of Board Committees comprising a majority of independent Non-
Executive Directors and chaired by an independent Director, to oversee all functional areas. We believe that excellence
emanates from good govemnance, therefore, we have adopted high standard of transparency and accountability,
professionalism and social responsiveness with improved customer focus to maintain a value driven organization.

11. Events after the reporting period

The directors are not aware of any material event which occurred after the reporting date and up to the date of this report which
requires adjustments to or disclosures in the accompanying financial statements.

12. Independent Auditor

Grant Thornton Certified Public Accountants were appointed as statutory auditors of the Bank in accordance with Section
167(1) of the Companies Act, 2012 and were duly approved by the Bank of Uganda in accordance with Section 62 of the
Financial Institutions Act, 2004, and as amended.

Grant Thornton Certified Public Accountants have expressed their willingness to continue as auditors of the Bank in
accordance with Section 167(2) of the Companies Act, 2012.

13. Secretary

The company secretary is Ms Freda Khainza whose registered office is at PO Box 7332, Kampala, Uganda.

10
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14. Approval of financial statements

The financial statements set out on pages 17 to 60, which have been prepared on the going concern basis were approved by
the board of directors on__ M evelr 1 & , 2024,

By Order of the Board

Ms Freda ghainza

Company Secretary

Date:_ Mool , 2024
Place: Kampala, Uganda
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Directors' Responsibilities and Approval

The Directors are required in terms of the Companies Act, 2012 and the Financial Institutions Act, 2004, and as amended, to
maintain adequate accounting records and are responsible for the content and integrity of the financial statements and related
financial information included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the financial statements fairly present the
state of affairs of the Bank as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then
ended, in confarmity with International Financial Reporting Standards.

The financial statements of Bank of India (Uganda) Limited ("the Bank") are prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable
and prudent judgements and estimates.

The Directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the
Bank and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the Directors to meet these
responsibilities, the board of directors sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost
effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective
accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored
throughout the Bank and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the Bank's business
is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the Bank is
on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the Bank. While operational risk cannot be
fully eliminated, the Bank endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical
behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.

The Directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal
control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the financial
statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The independent auditor was given unrestricted access lo all financial records and related information, including minutes of
meetings of shareholders, the Board of Directors and board committees. The Directors believe that all representations made to
the independent auditor during the audit are valid and appropriate.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that the Bank will not remain a going concern for at least next
twelve months from the date of this statement.

The financial statements set out on pages 17 to 60, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by

the board of directors on __IMlevehAs 1¢~ 2024 and were signed on its behalf by:
Wenceslaus Rama Makuza Sameet RanjartBehera
Chairman Ag. Managing Director
A
—

Julius Kigundu
Ag. Executive Director

Date: _Mea—ch < 2024
Place: Kampala, Uganda
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° GrantThornton Certified Public Accountants

Independent Auditor's Report

To the members of Bank of India (Uganda) Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Bank of India (Uganda) Limited ("the Bank") set out on pages 17 to 60, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2023, and the statement of profit or loss and the other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information,

In our opinion, the financial statements prasent fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Bank of India (Uganda)
Limited as at December 31, 2023, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), the requirements of the Companies Act, 2012 and the Financial
Institutions Act, 2004, and as amended.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' International
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (Including International Independence Standards) (Parts 1 and 3) (IESBA
Code) and other independence requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Uganda. We have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits in Uganda. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Key audit matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current year. This matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on this matter.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Expected credit losses on loans and advances to Our audit procedures included understanding and testing of
customers the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of the

We considered this as a key audit matter in view of the e fol.lumng; _ o
complex and subjective judgments exercised by the @) Controls over approving, recording and monitoring of loans
Directors in estimating the provision for Expected Credit and advances;

Logees {ECL) on loanw and advances: b) Controls over the allocation of loans and advances to

in addressing this area, we focused on the following: stages; and
c) The governance process of loans downgrading, including
the continuous re-assessment of the appropriateness of
assumptions used in for determining the impairment
e Modelling assumptions, estimates and data used to @lloWance.
build and run the models that calculate the ECL; and Qur testing of the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of the controls provided a basis for us to

* Appropriateness and completeness of overlays and continue with the planned nature, timing and extent of our
averrides applied within the ECL calculation to adjust for audit procedures.

known deficiencies.

* Allocation of loans and advances to stage 1, 2, or 3 in
accordance with IFRS 9;

Our procedures to address the elevated inherent risk in ECL
As disclosed in notes 1.9 & 14 of the financial statements, on loans and advances to customers included the following:
the Directors have estimated a provision for ECL on loans . o
and advances to customers of UShs 759,394 thousand at @) We oblained an understanding of the Bank's credit policy
December 31, 2023 (2022: UShs 5,311,255 thousand). and evaluated the processes for identifying impairment
indicators and consequently, the grading of loans for
compliance on the classification;

b) We selected samples of loans considering the total
axposure, risks, industry trends, etc. For selected samples,

Anil Patel (Indian), Jasmine Shah (Indian), Nilesh Patel (Indian) Kalpesh Patel (Indian)
Member of Grant Thornton International Limited The firm is licensed and regulated by the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Uganda
Registration Number: AF0055
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Key audit matter

we have verified the total exposure, value of security,
financial performance and banking of borrowers during the
year,

c) We assessed Directors' forecast of recoverable cash
flows, valuation of collaterals, estimates of recovery on
default and other sources of repayment. We evaluated the
consistency of key assumptions applied, benchmarking these
to our own understanding of the relevant industries and
business environments, to assess the validity of the collateral
valuations. We re-computed Directors' calculation of the
impairment allowances to check the accuracy and
completeness of data captured in the ECL model;

d) We tested a sample of the data used in the models as well
as assessing the model methodolegy and tested the
calculations within the models;

&) We assessed whether the modelling assumptions used
considered all relevant risks. We also tested the extraction
from underlying systems of historical data used in the
models;

f) We involved our IT specialists in the areas that required
specific expertise for confirming accuracy and completeness
of the data used for ECL model; and

g) We assessed the adequacy and appropriateness of
disclosures in the financial statements.

Other information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises of informations on pages 2 to 12.
Other information does not include the Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an audit opinion or any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

‘regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and in a manner required by the Companies Act, 2012 and the Financial
Institutions Act, 2004 and as amended and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Bank's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Directors either intend to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

14




Independent Auditor's Report

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Stancards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
bank's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the bank
to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication
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Independent Auditor's Report

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

As reqmred by the Companies Act, 2012 we report to you, based on our audit that:
we have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit;
. in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Bank, so far as appears from our examination of
those books; and

. the bank's statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are in
agreement with the books of account.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is CPA Nilesh Patel - P0374.

Nifesh Patel
P0374

W

Grant Thornten
Certified Public Accountants

fﬁm‘lﬂ\ 9\3L 2024

Kampala, Uganda
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Bank of India (Uganda) Limited

Annual report and financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

2023 2022
Note UShs 000 UShs "000

Interest income - 36,892,120 31,369,764
Interest expense 5 (14,397,802) (11,189,071)
Net interest income 22,494,318 20,180,693
Non interest income 6 7,571,687 3,302,285
Operating expenses 7 (20,820,032)  (9,348,340)
Impairment allowance on financial assets 14 5,052,990 (855,279)
Profit before taxation 14,298,963 13,279,369
Taxation 9 (6,212,492)  (3,238,175)
Profit for the year 8,086,471 10,041,194

Other comprehensive income . =

Total comprehensive income for the year 8,086,471 10,041,194

The notes on pages 21 to 60 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Bank of India (Uganda) Limited

Annual report and financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023

Statement of Financial Position

2023 2022
Note UShs '000 UShs '000

Assets

Cash and balances with Bank of Uganda 10 51,688,309 43,194,296
Investment in government securities 11 150,787,984 71,316,102
Due from group companies 12 3,707,535 3,785,319
Deposits and balances due from other financial institutions 13 51,880,858 53,227,599
Loans and advances to customers 14 197,167,994 187,129,273
Other assets 16 2,108,354 459,196
Deferred tax assets 18 402,557 2,220,605
Property, equipment and right-of-use assets 19 6,754,714 5,586,413
Total Assets 464,496,305 366,918,803

Equity and Liabilities

Equity

Share capital 20 120,000,008 27,000,000
Regulatory credit risk reserve 2,544,974 840,454
Retained earnings 16,789,691 36,917,740
Total Equity 139,344,671 64,758,194
Liabilities

Deposit and balances due to other financial institutions 13 5,000,000 12,000,000
Current tax payable 17 905,635 1,260,610
Due to group companies 21 58,590,000 57,749,902
Customer deposits 22 247,018,723 220,340,179
Other liabilities 23 13,637,276 10,809,918
Total Liabilities 325,151,634 302,160,609
Total Equity and Liabilities 464,496,305 366,918,803

The financial statements on pages 17 to 60, were approved by the board of directors and authorised for issue on the
Movel, 1€ . 2024and were signed on its behalf by:

Julius Kigundu
Ag. Executive Director

Wenceslaus Ra Makuza Freda Khainza
Chairperson Company Secretary

The notes on pages 21 to 60 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Bank of India (Uganda) Limited

Annual report and financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023

Statement of Changes in Equity

Share capital Share Total share  Regulatory Retained Total equity
premium capital credit risk earnings
reserve
UShs '000 UShs '000 UShs '000 UShs '000 UShs '000
Balance at January 1, 2022 27,000,000 - 27,000,000 1,173,324 26,543,676 54,717,000
Profit for the year - - - - 10,041,194 10,041,194
Other comprehensive income - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income - . - - 10,041,194 10,041,194
for the year
Transfer to regulatory reserves - - - (332,870) 332,870 -
(net of tax)
Total transactions with - - - (332,870) 332,870 -
owners
Balance at January 1, 2023 27,000,000 - 27,000,000 840,454 36,917,740 64,758,194
Profit for the yaar - - - = 8,086,471 8,086,471
Other comprehensive income - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income - - B - 8,086,471 8,086,471
for the year
Issue of shares 66,500,000 6 66,500,006 - - 66,500,006
Transfer to regulatory reserves - - - 1,704,520 (1,704,520) -
(net of tax)
Conversion of retained earnings 26,500,000 - 26,500,000 - (26,500,000) -
to share capital
Total transactions with 93,000,000 6 93,000,006 1,704,520 (28,204,520) 66,500,006
owners
Balance at December 31, 2023 120,000,000 6 120,000,006 2,544,974 16,799,691 139,344,671
Note(s) 20 20 20 15

The notes on pages 21 to 60 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Bank of India (Uganda) Limited

Annual report and financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023

Statement of Cash Flows

2023 2022

Note UShs '000 UShs '000
Cash flows from operating activities
Interest receipts 34,858,333 31,236,297
Interest payments (12,056,198) (12,028,064)
Net fees and commission receipts 3,798,254 3,287,987
Payments to employees and suppliers (9,440,908) (7,016,587)
Recoveries from bad debts wrtiten off 3,773,433 -
Changes in:
Loans and advances to customers (17,034,260) (6,500,134)
Cash reserve requirement (1,550,000) 3,218,913
Other assets (1,647,158) 352,408
Deposits and balances due to other financial institutions (7,000,000) (1,836,957)
Investment in government securities maturing 90 days after date of acquisition (85,345,428) (464,172)
Customer deposits 26,678,543 (4,209,080)
Due to group companies 840,098 1,029,902
Other liabilities 2,827,358 1,074,094
Cash (used in) generated from operating activities (61,297,933) 8,144,595
Income tax paid 17 (4,749,419)  (1,987,971)
Net cash (used in) generated from operating activities (66,047,352) 6,156,624
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, equipment and right-of-use assets 19 (806,712) (213,461)
Sale of property, equipment and right-of-use assets 19 - 14,308
Net cash used in investing activities (806,712) (199,153)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds on share issue 20 66,500,000 -
Share premium on share issue 20 6 "
Dividend paid - (3,240,000)
Net cash generated from (used in) financing activities 66,500,006 (3,240,000)
Movement in cash and cash equivalents for the year (354,058) 2,717,471
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 78,650,760 75,933,289
Total cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 25 78,296,702 78,650,760

The notes on pages 21 to 57 form an integral part of the financial statements
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Bank of India (Uganda) Limited P

Annual report and financial statements for the year ended Decembe

Notes to the Financial Statements

Corporate information

i i iciled i . The Bank
Bank of India (Uganda) Limited ("the Bank") is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in Uganda

started its operations in Uganda on November 9, 2010.

. . H 1n
The Bank is principally engaged in the provision of commercial banking services. The Bank has three branches, two situated
Kampala and one in Jinja

The Registered office of the Bank is:

Plot 37, Jinja Road,
PO Box 7332
Kampala, Uganda.

1. Material accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
1.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRSs"), in the manner required by the Companies Act, 2012 and the Financial Institutions Act, 2004 and as
amended.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historic cost convention, unless otherwise stated in the accogr_wling policies
which follow and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. They are presented in Uganda Shilll_ng; (UShs),
which is the Bank's functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period except for the changes set out in note 2.

1.2 Critical judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management, from time to time, to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. These estimates and associated assumptions are based on experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the

estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing
basis. Revisions to estimates are recognised prospectively

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Useful lives of property equipment and right-of-use assets

Management reviews the useful li
tjnancial year, the directors dete;
lives of the property and equipm

ves and residual values of the items of property and equipment on a regular basis. During the
rmined significant changes in the useful lives and residual values. Assessment of the useful
ent was done by the external consultant.

h
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Provision

Provisions are inherent|
_ ntly based on assumptions and est;
estimates for the provisions, based on the historical data a\.rani‘lI

Leases

ates using the best information av.
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ailable. Management makes
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Bank of India (Uganda) Limited

Annual report and financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements

1.2 Critical judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment losses on loans and advances

Critical estimates have been made by the management in arriving at the discounted values of securities in order to arrive at

the impairment charges for loans and advances. The calculation of impairment involves key judgements made by the
directors;

. For individually significant financial assets, the Bank considered judgements that have an impact on the expected
future cash flows of the asset. These include, the business prospects, industry and geopolitical climate of the customer,
realizable value of collateral, the Bank's legal position, etc. Many of the key judgement factors have a degree of
interdependency, therefore a significant level of judgement is required.

*  The difference between the loan carrying amount and the discounted expected future cash flows will result in the
impairment amount. The future cash flow calculation involves significant judgements and estimates. As new information
becomes available and further negotiations/forbearance measures are taken, the estimates of the future cash flows will be
revised, and will have an impact on the future cash flow analysis

. For financial assets which are not individually significant, which comprise a large number of loans that with similar risk
characteristics, statistical estimates and techniques are used. These techniques use models which analyze sector wise
historical repayment and default rates over a period of five years. Further judgement is required to determine whether the
current economic climate, behavioral and credit conditions are such that the actual level of incurred losses, and losses
inherent in the collective portfolio is likely to be greater or less than historical experience, and is not fully reflective in the
allowance estimated through the use of statistical models and historical data.

. The expecled loss utilizes probability of default and loss given default inherent within the portfolio of impaired loans or
receivables and the historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in one sector.
Probability of default is determined based on the Bank's internal assessment and customer's credit rating, no of days’ delay
in repayment of dues.

»  The Bank assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired. A
financial asset is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more default events occurring after the initial recognition. 90 days or more past due principle and interest.

Taxation

Judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes due to the complexity of legislation. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The Bank recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

The Bank recognises the net future tax benefit related to deferred income tax assets to the extent that it is probable that the
deductible temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future. Assessing the recoverability of deferred income tax
assets requires the Bank to make significant estimates related to expectations of future taxable income. Estimates of future
taxable income are based on forecast cash flows from operations and the application of existing tax laws in each jurisdiction.
To the extent that future cash flows and taxable income differ significantly from estimates, the ability of the Bank to realise
the net deferred tax assets recorded at the end of the reporting period could be impacted.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
Impairment of non financial assets
The Bank reviews its non financial assets to assess the likelihood of impairment on an annual basis. In determining whether

such assets are impaired, management make judgements as to whether there are any conditions that indicate potential
impairment of such assets.
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Bank of India (Uganda) Limited

Annual report and financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023
Notes to the Financial Statements

1.3 Revenue

Interest income

Under IFRS 9, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all financial assets measured at
amortised cosl. Interest expense is also calculated using the EIR methed for all financial liabilities held at amortised cost.
The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or
liability or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the financial asset) is calculated by taking into account transaction costs and
any discount or premium on the acquisition of the financial asset, as well as fees and costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The Bank recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return
over the expected life of the loan. Hence, the EIR calculation also takes into account the effect of potentially different interest
rates that may be charged at various stages of the financial asset's expected life, and other characteristics of the product life
cycle (including prepayments, penalty interest and charges).

Net interest income comprises interest income and interest expense calculated using both the effective interest method and
other methods. These are disclosed separately on the face of the income statement for both interest income and interest
expense to provide symmetrical and comparable information.

The Bank calculates interest income on financial assets, other than those considered credit-impaired, by applying the EIR to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and Is therefore regarded
as 'Stage 3', The Bank calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the net amortised cost of the financial asset. If the
financial asset cures and is no longer credit-impaired, The Bank reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis.

Fees and commission

The Bank earns fes and commission income from a diverse range of financial services it provides to its customers. Fee and
commission income is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which The Bank expects to be entitled in
exchange for providing the services.

The Bank also derives income from consideration paid by customers to transfer money and foreign exchange transactions.
These revenues vary by transaction based upon send and receive locations, the principal amount sent, whether the, money
transfer involves different send and receive currencies, the difference between the exchange rate set by The Bank to the
customer and the rate available in the wholesale foreign exchange market, speed of service, and channel, as applicable.
Income from foreign exchange transactions is the exchange rate margin between the selling and the buying rates of the
various currencies fraded in during the period (spot base). Although baseline exchange rates are determined by Bank of
Uganda, The Bank adjusts markel rates in response to the market demand and supply of the respective foreign currencies.
The Bank also offers several other services, including payment services and other bill payment services, for which income is
impacted by similar factors.

The performance obligations, as well as the timing of their satisfaction, are identified, and determined, at the inception of
the contract. The Bank's revenue contracts do not typically include multiple performance obligations, When The Bank
provides a service fo its customers, consideration is invoiced and generally due immediately upon satisfaction of a service
provided at a point in time or at the end of the contract period for a service provided over time. The Bank has generally
concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the services before transferring
them to the customer.
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Bank of India (Uganda) Limited

Annual report and financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements

1.4 Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies during the period are converted into Uganda Shillings (functional currency), at rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Assets and liabilities at the date of this report which are expressed in foreign currencies are
translated into Uganda Shillings at rates ruling at that date. The resulting differences from conversion and translation are
dealt with in the profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition in Uganda Shillings, by applying to the foreign currency
amount the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

At the end of the reporting period:
=  foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate;
*  non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated; and
. non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates different from
those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous financial statements are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

1.5 Property, equipment and right-of-use assets

An item of property, equipment and right-of-use assets is recognised as an asset when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Bank, and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, equipment and right-of-use assets is initially recorded at cost and thereafter stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost comprises expenditure initially incurred to bring the asset to its location and condition ready for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item willflow to the bank and the cost can be reliably measured.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, property and equipment and right-of-use-asset is measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation of an asset commences when the asset is available for use as intended by management. Depreciation is charged
to write off the asset's carrying amount over its estimated useful life to its estimated residual value, using a method that best
reflects the pattern in which the asset's economic benefits are consumed by the bank. Leased assets are depreciated in a
consistent manner over the shorter of their expected useful lives and the lease term. Depreciation is not charged to an asset if
its estimated residual value exceeds or is equal to its carrying amount. Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the
date that the asset is classified as held for sale or derecognised.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis to write down the cost of each asset to its residual value over its estimated
useful life, using the following annual rates.

Nature of assets Depreciation method Useful life
IT equipment Straight line 3 years
Office equipment Straight line 5 years
Electrical fittings Straight line 6 years
Furniture and fittings Straight line 8 years
Motor vehicles Straight line 4 years
Right -of-use assets Straight line 2-16 years

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting year. If the
expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.

Each part of an item of property, equipment and right-of-use assets with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of
the item is depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge for each year is recognised in profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying amount of another
asset.
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Bank of India (Uganda) Limited

Annual report and financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements

1.5 Property, equipment and right-of-use assets (continued)

An item of property, equipment and right-of-use assets is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its continued use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, equipment
and right-of-use assets, determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the
item, is included in profit or loss when the item is derecognised.

1.6 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

The cost of short-tarm employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid vacation
leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period in which the
service is rendered and are not discounted.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase
their entittement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or constructive
obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance.

Defined contribution plans

The Bank and all its' employees contribute to the National Social Security Fund, which is a defined contribution scheme. A
defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Bank pays a fixed contribution to a separate entity. The Bank has
no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees
the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. The assets of the scheme are held in a separate
trustee administered fund which is funded by contributions from both the Bank and employees.

The Bank's contributions to the defined contribution scheme are charged to the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the year to which they fall due.

1.7 Leases

At the inception of the contract, the Bank assesses whether a contract is, a lease. Contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified assets for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To
assess whether contract covers the right to control the use of an identified assets, the Bank assesses whether;

. the contract involves the use of an identified assets — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and should be
physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a
substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

* the Bank has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the period
of use; and

. the Bank has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Bank has this right when it has the decision-making rights
that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is used. In rare cases where the decision about how
and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Bank has the right to direct the use of the asset if either;

> the Bank has the right to operate the asset; or
> the Bank designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be used.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Bank allocates the consideration in the
contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of land and
buildings in which it is a lessee, the Bank has elected not to separate non-lease components and account for the lease and
non-lease components as a single lease component.

As a lessee

The Bank recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liabilities at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is
initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.
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Bank of India (Uganda) Limited

Annual report and financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements

1.7 Leases (continued)

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier
of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated ussful lives of right-of-use
assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically
reduced by impairment losses, if any, adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payment that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Bank's incremental
borrowing rate. Generally, the Bank uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease lability comprise the following:
+ fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

+ variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, intially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

« amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

e the exercise price under a purchase option that the Bank is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an
operational renewal period if the Bank is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early
termination of a lease unless the Bank is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Bank's estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Bank changes its assessment of whether it will exercise
purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Bank has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Bank recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as
an expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

1.8 Tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred income tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
The directors periodically evaluate positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. They establish provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill; deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the reporting date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Current tax assets and liabilities

Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amount already paid in respect
of current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess is recognised as an asset.
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1.8 Tax (continued)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities

A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent that the deferred tax liability
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which at the time of the transaction, affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. A deferred tax asset is not recognised when it
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting
profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

A deferred tax asset is recognised for the carry forward of unused tax losses and unused STC credits to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses and unused STC credits can be utilised.

1.9 Financial instruments
Initial measurement of financial instruments

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms and the business model
for managing the instruments. Financial instruments are initially measured at their fair value except in the case of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at FVPL, transaction costs are added to, or subtracted from, this amount. Trade
receivables are measured at the transaction price. When the fair value of financial instruments at initial recognition differs
from the transaction price.

When the transaction price of the instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the fair value is based on a
valuation technigue using only inputs observable in market transactions, the Bank recognises the difference between the
transaction price and fair value in net trading income. In those cases where fair value is based on models for which some
of the inputs are not observable, the difference between the transaction price and the fair value is deferred and is only
recognised in profit or loss when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities

The Bank classifies all its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets and the asset's contractual
terms, measured at either:

- Amortised cost
- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

The Bank classifies and measures its trading portfolio at FVPL and also may designate financial instruments at FVPL, if so
doing eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition inconsistencies.

Financial liabilities, other than loan commitments and financial guarantees, are measured at amorlised cost or at FVPL
when they are held for trading and derivative instruments or the fair value designation is applied.

Determination of fair value

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation
techniques, as summarised below:

Level 1 financial instruments - Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Bank has access to at the measurement date. The Bank considers markets
as active only if there are enough trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities
and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the reporting date.

Level 2 financial instruments - Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from
directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument's life. Such inputs include
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and
observable inputs other than quoted prices such as interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads. In
addition, adjustments may be required for the condition or location of the asset or the extent to which it relates to items that
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1.9 Financial instruments (continued)
are comparable to the valued instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on unobservable inputs which are
significant to the entire measurement, the Bank will classify the instruments as Level 3.

Level 3 financial instruments - Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as
whole.

Financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets at amortized cost

The Bank measures due from banks, loans and advances to customers and other financial investments at amortised cost
only if both of the following conditions are met:

- The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows

-The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPP!) on the principal amount outstanding

The details of these conditions are outlined below:

Business model assessment

The Bank determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to achieve
its business objective:

- The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and
the way those risks are managed

- How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected)

The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Bank's assessment. The business
model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking 'worst case' or 'stress case' scenarios into
account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is different from the Bank's original expectations,
the Bank does not change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model, but
incorporates such information when assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.

The SPPI test

As a second step of its classification process, the Bank assesses the contractual terms of the financial asset to identify
whether they meet the SPPI test. ‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at
initial recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or
amortisation of the premium/discount).

The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the time value of
money and credit risk. To make the SPP| assessment, the Bank applies judgement and considers relevant factors such as
the currency in which the financial asset is denominated, and the period for which the interest rate is set. In contrast,
contractual terms that introduce a more than de minimis exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash flows that are
unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the amount outstanding. In such cases, the financial asset is required to be measured at FVPL.

Financial assets and liabilities held at FVTPL

The Bank classifies financial assets or financial liabilities as held for trading when they have been purchased or issued
primarily for short-term profit-making through trading activities or form part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are
managed together, for which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit taking. Held-for-trading assets and
liabilities are recorded and measured in the statement of financial position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised
in other income. Interest and dividend income or expense is recorded in other income according to the terms of the contract,
or when the right to payment has been established.

Debt instruments at FVOCI
The Bank classifies debt instruments at FVOCI when both of the following conditions are met:

- The instrument is held within a business model, the objective of which is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets

28



Bank of India (Uganda) Limited

Annual report and financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements

1.9 Financial instruments (continued)
- The contractual terms of the financial asset meet the SPP| test

Gains and losses on disposal of investments whose changes in fair value were initially recognised in the statement of profit
or loss are determined by reference to their carrying amount and are taken into account in determining profit before tax. On
disposal of investments whose changes in fair value were initially recognised in equity, the gains/losses are recognised in
the reserve, where the fair values were initially recognised. Any gain / losses recongised in other comprehensive income will
be recycled upon derecognition of the asset.

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date on which the Bank commits to
purchase or sell the asset.

Equity instruments at FVOCI

Upon initial recognition, the Bank occasionally elects to classify irrevocably some of its equity investments as equity
instruments at FVOCI when they meet the definition of definition of Equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation
and are not held for trading. Such classification is determined on an instrument-by- instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these equity instruments are never recycled to profit. Dividends are recognised in profit or loss as
other operating income when the right of the payment has been established, except when the Bank benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the instrument, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity
instruments at FVOCI are not subject to an impairment assessment.

Financial guarantees, letters of credit and undrawn loan commitments

The Bank issues financial guarantees, letters of credit and loan commitments. Financial guarantees are initially recognised
in the financial statements (within Provisions) at fair value, being the premium received. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Bank's liability under each guarantee is measured at the higher of the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation recognised in the income statement, and an ECL allowance. The premium received is recognised in the income
statement in Net fees and commission income on a straight-line basis over the life of the guaraniee.

Undrawn loan commitments and letters of credits are commitments under which, over the duration of the commitment, the
Bank is required to provide a loan with pre-specified terms to the customer. Like financial guarantee contracts, these
contracts are in the scope of the ECL reguirements.

The nominal contractual value of financial guarantees, letters of credit and undrawn loan commitments, where the loan
agreed to be provided is on market terms, are not recorded on in the statement of financial position. The nominal values of
these instruments together with the corresponding ECL are disclosed.

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Bank does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional
circumstances in which the Bank acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line. Financial liabilities are never
reclassified.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

Derecognition due to substantial modification of terms and conditions

The Bank derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and conditions have been
renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the difference recognised as a derecognition gain
or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded. The newly recognised loans are classified as
Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes, unless the new loan is deemed to be purchased or originated credit impaired
(PQCI).

When assessing whether to derecognise a loan to a customer, amongst others, the Bank considers the following factors:

= Change in currency of the loan

= Introduction of an equity feature

29




Bank of India (Uganda) Limited

Annual report and financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements

1.9 Financial instruments (continued)
» Change in counterparty
« |If the modification is such that the instrument would no longer meet the SPPI criterion

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, as set out below, the modification does not
result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR, the Bank records a modification
gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded. For financial liabilities, the Bank considers
a modification substantial based on qualitative factors and if it results in a difference between the adjusted discounted
present value and the original carrying amount of the financial liability of, or greaier than, ten percent. For financial assets,

this assessment is based on qualitative factors.

Derecognition other than for substantial modification

Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired. The Bank also derecognises the
financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Bank has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either:

. The Bank has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or

. It retains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a '‘pass—through’ arrangement

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Bank retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of a
financial asset (the ‘original asset’), but assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to one or more entities
(the 'eventual recipients'), when all of the following three conditions are met:

. The Bank has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has collected equivalent amounts
from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with the right to full recovery of the amount lent plus accrued
interest at market rates

. The Bank cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual recipients
i The Bank must remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients without material delay.
. In addition, the Bank is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for investments in cash or cash equivalents,

including interest earned, during the period between the collection date and the date of required remittance to the
eventual recipients.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:
- The Bank has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or

. The Bank has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset

The Bank considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell the asset in its
entirety to an unrelated third party and can exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the
transfer.

When the Bank has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and has retained control of the
asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the Bank's continuing involvement, in which case, the
Bank also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Bank has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration the Bank could be required to pay.
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If continuing involvement takes the form of a written or purchased option (or both) on the transferred asset, the continuing
involvement is measured at the value the Bank would be required to pay upon repurchase. In the case of a written put option
on an asset that is measured al fair value, the extent of the entity's continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair
value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and
the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets
Overview of the ECL principles

The Bank records an allowance for expected credit loss for all loans and other debt financial assets not held at FVPL,
together with loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, in this section all referred to as ‘financial instruments'.
Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under IFRS 9.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected credit
losses or LTECL), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case, the
allowance is based on the 12 months' expected credit losses (12mECL). The 12mECL is the portion of LTECLs that
reprasent the ECL that result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the
reporting date. Both LTECL and 12mECL are calculated on either an individual basis or a collective basis, depending on the
nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments.

The Bank has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial
instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default
occurring aver the remaining life of the financial instrument.

To ensure completeness and accuracy, the Bank obtains the data used from third party sources (economic data and
forecast information by the governmental and international monetary authorities, etc.) and uses the services of an external
consultant that verifies the accuracy of inputs to the Bank's ECL models including determining the weights attributable to the
multiple scenarios. The key input in the ECL model include:

. Quarterly loan listing for previous five years;
. Write-off details and recoveries from the previous 5 years; and
. Year-end balances for exposed assets.

Based on the above process, the Bank groups its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3 and POCI, as described below:
= Stage 1:  When loans are first recognised, the Bank recognises an allowance based on 12mECL.
Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has improved, and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2.

« Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Bank records an allowance
for the LTECL. Stage 2 loans also include facilities, where the credit risk has improved, and the loan has been reclassified
from Stage 3. Instances for stage 2 may include a customer with various facilities and defaults on one of them, restructured
debt and/ sector affected by natural hazards.

« Stage 3: Loans considered credit impaired. The Bank records an allowance for the LTECL. Instances may include
customer being declared bankrupt by an independent government authority, pronounced a defaulter by ancther financial
inslitution and receiving a directive from the regulator to fully impair the party's receivable.
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« POCI: Purchased or originated credit impaired (POCI) assets are financial assets that are credit impaired on initial
recognition. POCI assets are recorded at fair value at original recognition and interest income is subsequently recognised
based on a credit adjusted EIR. The ECL allowance is only recognised or released to the extent that there is a subsequent
change in the expected credit losses.

For financial assets for which the Bank has no reasonable expectations of recovering either the entire outstanding amount,

or a proportion thereof, the gross carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced. This is considered a (partial)
derecognition of the financial asset.

The calculation of ECL

The Bank calculates ECL based on four probability-weighted scenarios to measure the expected cash shortfalls, discounted
at an approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows that are due to an entity in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are as follows:
= Probability of Default (PD):

The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default may only happen at
a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio. The
Bank considers a financial instrument defaulted for ECL calculations in all cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past
due on its contractual payments. The Bank considers treasury and interbank balances defaulted and takes immediate action
when the required intraday payments are not settled by the close of business as outlined in the individual agreements. PD
estimation is derived by bucketing products/facilities for segmentation based on homogeneous characteristics such as
industry or facility type, the historical loss rate and the weighted average loss rate and the Credit Conversion Factor (CCF).
The Bank uses the CCF which is based on Bank of Uganda guidelines for risk weightage of assets. The CCF for fund-based
assets and undrawn overdraft limits is 100% and 50% respectively. For non-fund-based products such as letter of credit,
guarantees and derivatives, their CCF is 20%, 100% and 5% respectively.

= Exposure at Default (EAD):

The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account expected changes in
the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or
otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed facilities, and accrued interest from missed payments, The Bank determines
EADs by modelling the range of possible exposure outcomes at various points in time, corresponding the multiple scenarios.
The IFRS 8 PDs are then assigned to each economic scenario based on the outcome of Bank's models.

» Loss Given Default:

The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. It is based on
the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the
realization of any collateral or credit enhancements that are integral to the loan and not required to be recognised
separately. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD. Under IFRS 9, LGD rates are estimated for the Stage 1,
Stage 2, Stage 3 and POCI IFRS 9 segment of each asset class. The inputs for these LGD rates are estimated and, where
possible, calibrated through back testing against recent recoveries. These are repeated for each economic scenario as
appropriate.

Write-off

The Bank writes off loans and advances net of any related aliowances for impairment losses, when the Bank's Credit
Committee determines that the loans and advances are uncollectible and securities unrealisable. This determination is
reached after considering information such as the occurrence of significant changes in the borrower or issuer’s financial
position such that the borrower or issuer can no longer pay the obligation, or that proceeds from sale of collateral will not be
sufficient to pay back the entire exposure and after exhausting all other means including litigation. For smaller balance
standardised loans, charge off decisions are generally based on a product specific past due status.
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1.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Bank’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets and inventory are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to
sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose
of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of
assets (the “cash-generating unit, or CGU").

The Bank's corpcrate assets do not generate separate cash inflows. If there is an indication that a corporate asset may be
impaired, then the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount,
Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other
assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amartisation, if no impairment loss
had been recognized.

1.11 Dividend

Dividends on ordinary shares are charged to equity in the year in which they are declared. Dividends declared after the
statement of financial position date are disclosed in the notes. This is transfered from retained earnings to a separate item
"proposed dividend" under equity.

1.12 Contingent liabilities

Letters of credit, acceptances, guarantees and performance bonds are accounted for as off balance sheet transactions and
disclosed as contingent liabilities. Estimates of the outcome and of the financial effect of contingent liabilities is made by the
management based on the information available up to the date the financial statements are approved for issue by the
directors. Any expected loss is charged to profit or loss.

1.13 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:
. the Bank has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
. it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation;

and
. a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised.

1.14 Equity

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Ordinary shares are recognised at par value and classified as 'share capital' in equity.
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2. New Standards and Interpretations
21 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year

In the current year, the Bank has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the current financial
year and that are relevant to its operations:

Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to IAS 8

Definition of Accounting Estimates amends IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.The
amendments introduced the definition of accounting estimates and included other amendments to help entities distinguish
changes in accounting estimates from changes in accounting policies.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after January 1, 2023.

The Company has adopted the amendment for the first time in the 2023 financial statements.

The impact of the amendment is not material.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2

The amendments replace the requirement for entities to disclose their significant accounting policies with the requirement to
disclose their material accounting policy information. The amendments also include guidance to help entities apply the
definition of material in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after January 1, 2023.

The Company has adopted the amendment for the first time in the 2023 financial statements.

The impact of the amendment is not material.

Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to IAS 12

The amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of IAS 12 so that it nolonger
applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. The
amendments apply to transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after January 1, 2023.

The Company has adopted the amendment for the first time in the 2023 financial statements.

The impact of the amendment is not material.
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2. New Standards and Interpretations (continued)

2.2 Standards and interpretations not yet effective

Bank's accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024 or later periods:

Standard/ Interpretation: Effective date:
Years beginning on or after

Classification of liabilities as current or non-current January 1, 2024
(Amendments to IAS 1)

Non-current liabilities with convenants (Amendments to IAS 1) January 1, 2024

Lease liability in a sale and lease back (Amendments to IFRS  January 1, 2024

16)

Supplier finance arrangements (Amendments to IAS 7 and January 1, 2024
IFRS 7)

Lack of exchangeability (Amendments to IAS 21) January 1, 2025

The Bank has chosen not to early adopt standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory for the

Expected impact
Unlikely there will be a material
impact

Unlikely there will be a material
impact

Unlikely there will be a material
impact

Unlikely there will be a material
impact

Unlikely there will be a material
impact
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3. Financial risk management
Financial risk management

The Bank's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk,
cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. Those activities involve the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and management of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking risk is core to the Bank's business,
and the financial risks are an inevitable consequence of being in business. The Bank's aim is therefore to achieve an
appropriate balance between risk and return and categorise potential adverse effects on its financial performance.

Financial risk management is carried out by the Treasury and Credit department under policies approved by the Board of
Directors. Treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the operating units. The
Board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas such as
foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative and non-derivative financial instruments.

(a) Capital management
Internally imposed capital requirements

The Bank's objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept than the equity on the face of financial position
are:

- to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services commensurate with the level of risk;

- to comply with the capital requirements set by the Financial Institutions (Capital Adequacy Requirements) Regulations,
2018; Financial Institutions (Capital Buffers and Leverage Ratio) Regulations 2020 and Financial Inslitutions (Revision of
the Minimum Capital Requirements) Statutory Instrument 2022.

- to safeguard the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders;

- to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business; and
- to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

Capital adequacy and use of regulatory capital are monitored regularly by management, employing techniques based on
the guidelines developed by the Basel Committee, as implemented by the Bank of Uganda for supervisory purposes. The
required information is filed with the Bank of Uganda on a quarterly basis.

Externally imposed capital requirements

The Financial Institutions (Capital Buffers and Leverage Ratio) Regulations 2020 and Financial Institutions (Revision of the
Minimum Capital Requirements) Statutory Instrument 2022 require financial institutions to: (a) hold the minimum level of
regulatory capital of USh 120 billion (2022: UShs 25 billion); (b) maintain core capital of not less than 12.5% of total risk
weighted assets plus risk weighted off balance sheet items; and (c) maintain total capital of not less than 14.5% of risk-
weighted assets plus risk-weighted off-balance sheet items.

The bank's total regulatory capital is divided into two tiers:

B Tier 1 capital (core capital): share capital, share premium, and retained earnings and reserves created by
appropriations of retained eamings. The book value of goodwill, current year losses, prohibited loans to insiders,
investments in unconsolidated financial statements, deficiencies in provisions for losses, other deductions
determined by BOU are deducted in arriving at tier 1 capital

B Tier 2 capital (Supplementary capital): Revaluation reserves, general provisions, subordinated debt and hybrid
capital instruments.

The risk weighted assets are measured by means of a hierarchy of four risk weights classified according to the nature of
and reflecting an estimate of the credit risk associated with each asset and counterparty. A similar treatment is adopted for
off-balance sheet exposure, with some adjustments to reflect the more contingent nature of the potential losses.




Bank of India (Uganda) Limited

Annual report and financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements

3. Financial risk management (continued)

The table below summarizes the composition of the regulatory capital.

2023 2022
UShs '000 UShs '000

Core capital (Tier 1)
Share capital 120,000,000 27,000,000
Share premium 6 -
Accumulated profit 16,799,700 36,917,747
Deferred tax (402,557) (2,220,605)
Total Tier 1 Capital 136,397,149 61,697,142
Supplementary capital (Tier 2)
Unencumbered general provisions (Fl Act) 1,965,889 1,881,697
Tier 1 capital 136,397,149 61,697,142
Tier 2 capital 1,965,889 1,881,697
Total capital (Tier 1 + Tier 2) 138,363,038 63,578,839

to reflect the more contingent nature of potential losses.

requirements.

The risk—weighted assets are measured by means of hierarchy of five risk weights classified according o the nature of and
reflecting an estimate of credit, market and market risks associated with each asset and counterparty, taking into account
any eligible collateral or guarantees. A similar treatment is adopted for off-balance sheet exposure, with some adjustments

The regulations also introduced a minimum leverage ratio of 6%. This is calculated as the core capital divided by the total
balance sheet plus off-balance sheet exposure. As at December 31, 2023, the Bank's capital adequacy ratio of 62.33% and
63.23% for core capital and total capital respectively as well as the leverage ratio at 26.73% is within the regulatory
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In 2022, Bank of Uganda issued The Financial Institutions (Revision of Minimum Capital Requirements) Instrument 2022
which increased the minimum paid-up capital requirement for banks from UShs 25 billion to minimum capital unimpaired by
losses of not less than UShs 150 billion by June 30, 2024. Compliance was to be phased with UShs 120 billion to be met
by December 31, 2022 and the total UShs.150 billion to be fully met by June 30, 2024..

As at December 31, 2023, the Bank was compliant with this requirement with a holding paid up share capital of UShs
120,000,000 thousand. However, the Bank is still short of the holding of UShs 30,000,000 thousand by June 30, 2024, The
Bank has initiated the discussions with the shareholders to pool more capital in order to be compliant with this requirement
by then.

Introduction of the Basel Il capital requirements

Bank of Uganda has over the years provided guidelines to supervised financial institutions on management of capital. From
2018 when the Market Risk Regulations were gazette up until December 2021, SFls were holding capital in accordance
with the Basel | Capital Accord which only covered credit and market risks.

In order to cater to risks not addressed under Basel |, BOU decided to implement the Basel || Capital Accord, together with
some elements of Basel |Il.

The Basel || Framework introduces three pillars for the quantitative and qualitative management of capital.

Pillar 1 expands the minimum capital adequacy requirement to cover operational in addition to credit and market risks.

Pillar 2 emphasizes risk management by requiring each SFI to run an Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
(ICAAP) and allocate capital to all the risks that are considered material to it. This pillar also requires the regulator to review
and verify the adequacy of the ICAAPs.

Pillar 3 encourages transparency through quantitative and qualititative market disclosures.
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Bank of India (Uganda) Limited is aligned to the implementation plan for the roll out of Basel || and completed its first ICAAP
reporting in 2022 following a parallel run of both Basel | and Il from June to December 2021.

2023 2022
Particulars Balance Sheet  Risk Risk Weighted Balance Sheet Risk Risk Weighted
Nominal Amount Weight Amount Nominal Amount Weight  Amount
UShs '000 % UShs '000 %
UShs '000 UShs '000
Assets
Notes, coins and other cash 3,374,668 0% - 3,165,894 0% -
assels
Investment in government 150,787,984 0% - 71,316,102 0% -
securities
Due from commercial banks in 8,410,858 20 % 1,682,172 31487599 20 % 6,297,520
Uganda
Balance with Bank of Uganda 48,313,641 0 % - 40,028,402 0% -
Placements with local Banks 43,470,000 20 % 8,694,000 21,740,000 20% 4,348,000
Due from banks outside Uganda
with longterm rating as follows:

ii. Rated BBB and non-rated 3,707,535 100 % 3,707,535 3,785,319 100 % 3,785,319
Loans and advances to 165,923,683 100 % 165,923,683 167,461,716 100 % 167,461,716
customers (excluding loans
secured by 100% cash margin)

Qutstanding balance fully 30,665,226 0% - 20,708,000 0 % -

secured by FDR/SDR

Other assets 2,106,354 100 % 2,106,354 459,196 100 % 459,196

Current tax receivable - 0% - - 100 % -

Deferred tax asset 402,557 0% - 2,220,605 0% -

Property, equipment and right- 6,754,714 100 % 6,754,714 5,586,413 100 % 5,586,413

of-use asset

*Total assets 463,917,220 188,868,458 367,959,246 187,938,164

Off balance sheet items

Direct credit substitutes 5,044 538 100 % 5,044,538 11,736,230 100 % 11,736,230

(guarantees and acceptances)

Documentary credits (trade 8,069,205 20 % 1,613,841 6,527,117 20 % 1,305,423

related and self liquidating)

Other commitments (unused 33,303,655 50 % 16,651,828 20,557,161 50 % 10,278,581

formal facilities)

Total off balance sheet items 46,417,398 23,310,207 38,820,508 23,320,234
510,334,619 212,178,665 406,779,754 211,258,398

Weighted items with market risk 6,659,468 3,339,067

Total risk weighted assets 218,838,133 214,597,465

FIA minimum requirement Bank's leverage

Core capital (Tier 1) 136,397,149 61,697,142

Total balance sheet 463,917,221 367,959,246

Qff balance sheet exposure 46,417,398 38,820,508

Total assets 510,334,619 406,779,754

|Leverage ratio 6% 6% 26.73% 15.17%

The Bank's leverage ratio has improved in 2023 as compared to 2022 and above 6% which is the required minimum as per
Regulation 10 of the Financial Institutions (Capital Buffers and Leverage Ratio) Regulations, 2020.
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3. Financial risk management (continued)

*This includes the loans and advances net of impairment allowance in accordance with the Financial Institutions Act, 2004,
and as amended. Below is the reconciliation of total assets as per statement of financial position;

2023 2022
UShs '000 UShs '000
Total assets as per Statement of Financial Position 464,496,305 366,918,803
Less: Loans and advances to customer (as per IFRS) (197,167,994) (187,129,273)
Add: Loans and advances to customer (as per Fl Act) 196,588,909 188,169,716
*Total assets (as above) 463,917,220 367,959,246
Reconciliation of loan and advances to customers between IFRS and FIA 2023 2022
UShs '000 UShs '000
Gross loans and advances 197,927,388 192,704,252
Less: Specific provision as per FIA 2004 (and as amended) (1,338,479) (4,270,012)
Less: Interest in supense - (264,524)
Net loans and advances to customers for regulatory purposes 196,588,909 188,169,716
Represented by:
Qutstanding balance fully secured by FDR/SDR 30,665,226 20,708,000
Loans and advances to customers (excluding loans secured by 100% cash margin) 165,923,683 167,461,716
196,588,909 188,169,716
2023 2023 2022 2022
Actual Minimum Actual Minimum
Requirements Requirements
Core capital to risk assets ratio 62.33 % 12.50 % 28.75 % 12.50 %
Total capital to risk assets ratio 63.23 % 14.50 % 2963 % 14.50 %
Credit risk

The Bank takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will cause a financial loss to the Bank by failing
to pay amounts in full when due. Credit risk is the most important risk for the Bank's business: management therefore carefully
manages the exposure to credit risk. Credit exposures arise principally in lending and investment activities. There is also credit
risk in off-balance sheet financial instruments, such as loan commitments. For risk management purposes, credit risk arising on
trading of securities is managed independently, but reported as a component of market risk exposure.

The Bank structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to one
borrower, or Banks of borrowers, and to industry segments.

Such risks are monitored on a revolving basis and subject to annual or more frequent review. Limits on the level of credit risk
by product, industry sector and by country are approved quarterly by the Board of Directors.

The exposure to any one borrower including banks is further restricted by sub-limits covering on- and off-balance sheet
exposures and daily delivery risk limits in relation to trading items such as forward foreign exchange contracts. Actual
exposures against limits are monitored daily.

The credit risk management and control are centralised in credit and treasury departments of the bank.

In measuring credit risk of loans and advances to customers, the Bank reflects on various components. These include:
=  the probability of default by the borrower/client on their contractual obligations;
=  current exposures on the borrower/client and the likely future development, from which the Bank derives the
exposure at default; and
« the likely recovery ratio on the defaulted obligations.
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The Bank assesses the probability of default of individual borrower/client using internal rating methods tailored to the various
categories of the borrower/client. These have been developed and combine statistical analysis with the credit department's
judgment and are validated, where appropriate, by comparison with externally available data. Management assesses the credit
quality of the customer, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual limits are set
based on internal or external information in accordance with limits set by the management. The utilisation of credit limits is
regularly monitored. Corrective action is taken where necessary.

Investments

For investments, internal ratings taking into account the requirements of the Financial Institution Act are used by the Bank for
managing the credit risk exposures. The investments in those securities are viewed as a way to gain a better credit quality
mapping and maintain a readily available source to meet the funding requirment at the same time.

Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Bank manages its credit risk, inter-alia by:

« Formulating credit policies covering collateral requirements, credit assessment risk grading, legal procedures for
documentation, reporting and compliance with regulatory and statutory requirements.

. Establishing the authority structure for approval and renewal of credit facilities. Discretionary lending powers have
been allocated to the Credit Committee of Board, Credit Management Committee, Managing Director, Assistant
General Managers, Chief Managers/ Senior Branch Managers, Credit Commitiee of the Board to oversee the credit
portfolio of the Bank.

B Developing and maintaining the Bank’s risk grading in order to categerise exposures accerding to degree of risk of
financial loss faced and the focus on management of consequent risk or loss. The current risk grading framework
consist of 5 categories of risk grades reflecting the varying grades of risk of default and availability of collaterals or
other risk mitigates, risk grades are subject to regular review by the bank.

. Setting exposure limits i.e. credit concentration. The Bank has in place a framework of exposure ceiling of various
industries, counterparties, country (for investment securities) etc.

- Review and assessment of credit risk - The Bank carries out a conscious assessment of credit exposure in excess of
designated limits, prior to the facilities being committed to the customer. This is a part of the appraisal system for
processing the request of borrower for a credit facility. Renewals and review of credit facilities are also subject to the
same appraisal criteria.

- Review of the compliance of the various regulatory limits, exposure ceilings etc. at regular intervals by the Bank.

. The management provide assistance to the business units/branches to promote best practices for credit appraisal
throughout the Bank in management of credit risk

Each branch/business units are responsible for implementing, complying and monitoring with the credit policies in order to build
up a quality credit portfolio, including those which are sanctioned by head office. Regular audit of the branches is undertaken
by the internal audit.

Some other specific control and mitigation measures are outlined below:

Collateral

The Bank employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk. The most common one is to obtain collateral for
loans and advances to customers. The types of collateral obtained include:

. Mortgages over properties;

. Charges over business assets such as land and buildings, inventory and receivables;

. Charges over financial instruments such as investments:;

. Deposits placed under lien.
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3. Financial risk management (continued)

Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analysis of the ability of borrowers and potential borrowers to meet interest
and capital repayment obligations and by changing lending limits where appropriate. Exposure to credit risk is also managed in
part by obtaining collateral and corporate and personal guarantees, but a significant portion is personal lending where no such
facilities can be obtained.

Credit-related commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds are available to a customer as required. Guarantees and
standby letters of credit, which represent irrevocable assurances that the Bank will make payments in the event that a customer
cannot meet its obligations to third parties, camry the same credit risk as loans. Documentary and commercial letters of credit,
which are written undertakings by the Bank on behalf of a customer categorized a third party to draw drafts on the Bank up to a
stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions, are categorizations by the underlying shipments of goods to which they
relate and therefore carry less risk than a direct borrowing.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of categorizations to extend credit in the form of loans, guarantees or
letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments to extend credit, the Bank is potentially exposed to loss in an
amount equal to the total unused commitments. However, the likely amount of loss is less than the total unused commitments,
as most commitments to extend credit are contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit standards. The Bank
monitors the term to maturity of credit commitments because longer-term commitments generally have a greater degree of
credit risk than shorter-term commitments.

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held

2023 2022
UShs '000 UShs '000

Deposit and balances due from other financial institutions 51,880,858 53,227,599
Due from group companies 3,707,535 3,785,319
Cash and Balances with Bank of Uganda 48,313,641 40,028,402
Investment in government securities 150,787,984 71,316,102
Other assets : 2,106,354 459,196
Loans and advances to customers 197,927,388 192,704,252
Credit exposure relating to off-balance sheet items:

Letters of credit 8,069,205 6,527,117
Guarantees and acceptances 5,044,538 11,736,230
Undrawn formal stand-by facilities, credit lines and other commitments te lend 33,303,655 20,557,161

501,141,158 400,341,378

The table above represents a worst case scenario of credit risk exposure to the Bank without taking account of any collateral
held or other credit enhancements attached. For on-balance sheet assets, the exposures set out above are based on carrying
amounts as reported in the statement of financial position.

As shown above, 39.48% (2022: 48.13%) of the total maximum exposure of the bank is derived from loans and advances to
banks and customers 30.12% (2022: 17.81%) represents investments in government securities.

Impairment and provisioning policies

The bank's internal and external systems focus more on credit quality mapping from the inception of the lending of the loan or
advance. In contrast, impairment provisions are recognised for financial reporting purposes only for losses that have been
incured at the statement of financial position date based on objective evidence of impairment.

The impairment provision shown in the statement of financial position at the year-end is derived after taking various factors into
consideration as described in the accounting policy. The bank's management uses basis under IFRS 9 and the Prudential
Guidelines to determine the amount of impairment.

Management is confident on its ability to continue to control and sustain minimal exposure of credit risk to the bank resulting
from both its loan and advances portfolio and debt securities based on the following:

. 87% (2022: 78%) of the loans and advances portfolio are neither past due nor impaired

*  99% (2022: 99%) of the loans are backed by collaterals

. 100% (2022: 100%) of the investments in debt securities are government securities.
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. The Bank exercises stringent control over granting of new loans

Loans and advances are categorized as follows:

2023 2022
UShs '000 UShs 000

Stage 1 172,059,792 150,273,600
Stage 2 23,515,132 30,913,474
Stage 3 2,352 464 11,517,178
Gross loans and advances 197,927,388 192,704,252
Impairment allowance (759,394)  (5,311,255)
Interest in suspense - (263,724)
Loans and advances - net 197,167,994 187,129,273

Loans and advances that are past due for 30 days or less are classified in stage 1, loans and advances that are past due for
more than 30 days but less than 91 days are classified in stage 2 and loans and advances that are past due for 91 days or
more are classified in stage 3.

Loans and advances renegotiated

The contractual terms of a loan may be modified for a number of reasons, including changing market conditions, customer
retention and other factors not related to a current or potential credit deterioration of the customer. An existing loan may be
derecognised and the renegotiated loan recognised as a new loan at fair value. The Bank renegotiates loans to customers in
financial difficulties to maximise collection opportunities and minimise the risk of default. Under the Bank's credit policy, loan
restructure is granted on a selective basis if the debtor is currently in default on its debt or if there is a high risk of default, there
is evidence that the debtor made all reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractual terms and the debtor is expecled to
be able to meet the revised terms.

The revised terms usually include extending the maturity, changing the timing of interest and principal payments and amending
the terms of loan covenants. For the purposes of disclosures in these financial statements, ‘loans with renegotiated terms’ are
defined as loans that have been restructured due to a deterioration in the borrower’s credit risk profile, for which the Bank has
made concessions by agreeing to terms and conditions that are more favourable for the borrower than the Bank had provided
initially and that it would not otherwise consider. A loan continues to be presented as part of loans with renegotiated terms until
maturity, earlier repayment or until it is writien off.

Concentration of credit risk
Economic sector risk concentrations within the loans and advances portfolic are as follows:

At December 31, 2023
Loans and Credit
advances commitments

% %
Building and construction 30.02 13.51
Trade and commerce 36.63 37.98
Manufacturing 12.56 24 .97
Agricultural 10.59 B
Business services 3.26 14.74
Transport and communication 1.62 0.70
Community social and other services 262 -
Personal and household 270 8.10
Gross 100.00 100.00
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At December 31, 2022

Loans and Credit
advances commitments
% %
Building and censtruction 40.13 38.57
Trade and commerce 24 .86 20.40
Manufacturing 14.56 13.99
Agricultural 11.52 0.32
Business services 3.16 0.97
Transport and communication 1.58 0.12
Community social and other services 314 0.22
Personal and household 1.05 25.41
Gross 100.00 100.00

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank is unable to meet its payment obligations associated with its financial liabilities when they
fall due and to replace funds when they are overdrawn. The consequence may be the failure to meet obligations to repay
depositors and full commitments to lend.

The Bank is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources from overnight deposits, current accounts, maturing deposit
and calls on cash settled contingencies. The Bank does not maintain cash resources to meet all these needs as experience
that a minimum level of reinvestment of maturing funds can be predicted with a high level of certainty.

The Bank of Uganda requires that the Bank maintains a Cash Reserve Ratio. In addition, the Board sets limits on the minimum
proportion of maturing funds available to meet such calls and on the minimum inter-bank and other borrowing facilities that
should be in place to cover withdrawals at unexpected level of demand. The treasury department of the Bank monitors the
liquidity ratio on a daily basis.

The table overleaf analyses the Bank's financial assets and liabilities into the relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining pericd at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
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At December 31, 2023

Upto 1 month 1 to 3 months 3 to 12 months 1to 5 years Over 5 years Total
UShs 000 UShs "000 UShs '000 UShs '000 UShs '000 UShs '000
Assets
Cash and balances with 51,688,309 - - - - 51,688,309
Bank of Uganda
Investment in government 8,784,200 5,849,970 46,280,542 84,865,648 5,007,624 150,787,984
securities
Due from group companies 3,707,535 - - - - 3,707,535
Deposit and balances due 51,880,858 - . - - 51,880,858
from other financial
institutions
Loans and advances to 29,749,045 11,703,072 60,496,212 77,148,395 18,830,664 197,927,388
customers
Total assets 145,809,947 17,553,042 106,776,754 162,014,043 23,838,288 455,992,074
Liabilities
Deposit and balances due to 5,000,000 - - - - 5,000,000
other financial institutions
Customer deposits 41,336,072 21,743,463 139,353,380 44,585,808 - 247,018,723
Due to group companies 7,560,000 5,670,000 45,360,000 - - 58,590,000
Other liabilities - 2,612,635 1,562,706 9,939,272 - 14,114,613
Total liabilities 53,896,072 30,026,098 186,276,086 54,525,080 - 324,723,336
Net liquidity gap 91,913,875 (12,473,056) (79,499,332) 107,488,963 23,838,288 131,268,738
Off-balance sheet items 21,647,376 8,32!5‘914 3,330,365 - - 33,303,655
Overall net position 70,266,499  (20,798,870) (82,829,697) 107,488,963 23,838,288 97,965,083
At December 31, 2022
Total assets 136,481,680 20,866,260 82,975,442 83,923,576 39,980,610 364,227,568
Total liabilities 87,896,843 55,703,223 148,188,290 9,375,368 - 301,163,724
Net liquidity gap 48,584,837 (34,836,963) (65,212,848) 74,548,208 39,980,610 63,063,844
Off-balance sheet items 23,163,735 4,097,650 11,559,123 - - 38,820,508
Overall net position 25,421,102 (38,934,613) (76,771,971) 74,548,208 39,980,610 24,243,336
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The Bank is expected to comply with the new liquidity requirements under the Financial Institutions (Liquidity) Regulations 2023
i.e. Liquidity Coverage Ratio, Net Stable Funding Ratio and Internal Liquidity Adequacy Assessment Process. The table
overleaf analyses compliance assessment for the Liquidity Coverage Ratio and Net Stable Funding Ratio as at December 31,

2023.

Liquidity coverage ratio

At December 31, 2023 Conversion Amount Converted
factor amount
UShs '000 UShs '000

Stock of high quality liquid assets

Cash on hand 100% 3,374,668 3,374,668
Balances with Bank of Uganda 100% 48,313,641 48,313,641
Investment in government securities (maturing in 30 days) 100% 8,784,200 8,784,200
Total value of stock of highly liquid assets 60,472,508 60,472,508
Cash outflows

Demand and savings deposits 15% 67,051,696 10,057,754
Time deposits (maturing in 30 days) 100% 16,670,543 16,670,543
Deposit and balances due toother financial institutions (maturing in 30 days) 100% 5,000,000 5,000,000
Due to group companies (maturing in 30 days) 100% 5,670,000 5,670,000
Other liabilities (maturing in 30 days) 100% 14,605,376 14,605,376
Off-balance sheet cash outflows 5% 8,925,508 446,275
Total cash outflows 117,923,123 52,449,949
Cash inflows

Loans and advances to customers (maturing in 30 days) 15% 29,749,045 4,462 357
Deposit and balances due from other financialinstitutions (maturing in 30 100% 51,880,858 51,880,858
days)

Due from group companies (maturing in 30 days) 100% 3,707,535 3,707,535
Total cash inflows 85,337,438 60,050,750
Total net cash outflows = Total cash outflows minus min [total cash 13,112,487

inflows, 75% of gross outflows]

Liquidity coverage ratio = (Total value of stock of high quality liquid 461.18%
assets / Net cash

The set internal liquidity coverage ratio (LCR) is 150% against the prudential limit of 100%. The Bank had LCR of 461.18% as
shown above.
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Net stable funding ratio

At December 31, 2023 Conversion Amount Converted
factor amount
UShs '000 UShs 000

Available stable funding (sources)

Capital and reserves 100% 139,344,671 139,344,671
Time deposits with maturity greater than one year 90% 1,957,721 1,761,949
Time deposits with maturity of 6 months to 1 year 50% 69,676,690 69,676,690
Time deposits with maturity under 6 months 20% 38,414,007 7,682,801
Due to group companies and from BOU with maturity of 6 months to 1 year 50% 32,130,000 16,065,000
Total available stable funding 355375120 236,618,782

Required stable funding (uses)

Investment in government securities maturing in less than 1 year 15% 60,914,712 9,137,207

Loans and advances to customers maturing in less than 6 months 15% 41,452,118 6,217,818

Due from group companies and non-financial institutions with maturity less 1 50% 55,688,393 27,794,197

year

Loans and advances with maturity of 6 months to 1 year 50% 60,496,212 30,248,106

Other assets with maturity under 1 year 50% 1,668,695 834,347

All other assets with maturity = 1 year (not included above) 100% 28,799 28,799

Off-balance sheet items 20% 13,113,743 2,622,749

Total required stable funding 233,262,671 76,883,222

Net stable funding ratio 307.76%

The net stable funding ratio for the Bank as at December 31, 2023 is 307% compared to the prudential limit of 100%
Internal liquidity adequacy assessment process

This is still under the process of implementation however from the above ratios the bank had enough liquid assets to cater for
all material liquidity risk exposures of the bank. All the above liquidity risk ratios are way above the prudential limits which
creates enough buffer to absorb current and future liquidity exposures of the bank as they fall due.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, which include currency exchange rates and interest rates, will affect the
fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument. Market risk arises from open positions in interest rates and foreign
currencies, both of which are exposed to general and specific market movements and changes in the level of volatility. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable limits, while the return
on risk. Overall responsibility for managing market risk rests with the Board Assets and Liabilities Committee. The Treasury
department is responsible for the development of detailed risk management policies and for the day to day implementation of
those policies.

The major measurement techniques used to measure and control market risk are outlined below;

Stress test

Stress test provides an indication of the potential size of losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The stress tests carried
out by the treasury department include: risk factor, stress testing where stress movements are applied to each risk category,
emerging market stress testing, where emerging market portfolios are subject to stress movements and ad-hoc stress testing,
which includes applying possible stress events to specific positions or regions - for example the stress outcome to a region
following currency peg break. The results of the stress tests are reviewed by senior management in each business unit. The
stress test is tailored to the business and typically uses scenario analysis.
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3. Financial risk management (continued)
Foreign exchange risk

The Bank's assets are typically funded in the same currency as the business transacted to eliminates foreign exchange
exposures. However, the Bank maintains an open position within the tolerance limits prescribed by BoU and approved by the
board.

The Bank is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures primarily with respect to the US Dollar,
Euro and GBP. The risk arises from future transactions, assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position date.

The intraday positions are managed by treasury through stop loss/dealer limits. End of day positions are marked to market.

The table below summarises the effect on post-tax profit and components of equity had the Uganda Shillings weakened by
10% against each currency, with all other variables held constant. If the Uganda Shilling strengthened against each currency,
the effect would have been the opposite. The 10% sensitivity represents Director's assessment of the reasonable change in
exchange rates.

Effect on profit (decrease)

Currency 2023 2022

UShs "000 UShs '000
US Dollar 11,862,513 830,408
Euro 4,454 (8,583)
GBP (3,027) (6,628)
Others (4,029) (410)
Total 11,859,911 814,787
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3. Financial risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Bank's operations are subject to the risk of interest rate fluctuations to the extent that interest earning assets and interest
bearing liabilities mature or reprice at different rimes or in different amounts. Risk management activities are aimed at
optimizing net interest income, given market interest rates levels consistent with the Bank's business strategies.

The Bank is exposed to various risks associated with the effects of fluctuation in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on
its financial position and cash flows. The management closely monitor the interest rate trends to minimise the potential adverse
impact of interest rate changes.

The table below summarises the exposure to interest rate risk at the reporting date. Included in the table are the assets and

liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates. The Bank does not have any
derivative financial instruments. The Bank does not bear an interest rate risk on off balance sheet items.

At December 31, 2023

Up to 1 month 1to 3 3to12 1to 5 Over 5 years Total
UShs '000 months months years UShs '000
UShs'000 UShs'000 UShs '000 UShs'000
Assets
Investment in government securities - 14,634,170 46,280,542 B4,865648 5,220,495 151,000,855
Deposits and balances due from 49,228,186 B - 6,360,207 - 55,588,393
ather financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers 29,749,045 11,703,072 60,496,212 77,148,395 18,830,663 197,927,387
Total assets 78,977,231 26,337,242 106,776,754 168,374,250 24,051,158 404,516,635
Liabilities
Customer deposits 41,336,072 21,743,463 139,353,380 44,343,889 - 246,776,804
Deposits and balances due to other 10,670,000 21,031,907 32,130,000 - - 63,831,907
financial institutions
Other liabilities - - 1,231,523 4,308,899 - 5,540,422
Due to group companies 7,560,000 5,670,000 45,360,000 - - 58,590,000
Total liabilities 59,566,072 48,445,370 218,074,903 48,652,788 - 374,739,133
Interest sensitivity gap 19,411,159 (22,108,128) (111,298,149) 119,721,462 24,051,158 29,777,502
At December 31, 2022
Total assets 58,014,466 20,866,260 82,991,940 123,872,610 - 285,745,278
Total liabilities 109,519,784 33,022,056 174,301,170 5,619,448 553,785 323,016,243
Interest sensitivity gap (51,505,318) (12,155,796) (91,309,230) 118,253,162 (553,785) (37,270,967)

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest rates of assets and liabilities is fundamental to the
management of the Bank. It is unusual for banks ever to be completely matched since business transacted is often of uncertain
terms and of different types. An unmatched position potentially enhances profitability, but can also increase the risk of losses.
Management is of the view that the mismatch does not subject the Bank to severe liquidity risks because maturities for all
government securities and balances with overseas banks can be restructured in accordance with business demands.

Interest rate risk sensitivity

As at December 31, 2023, if interest rates had been 10% lower/higher with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit and
equity for the year would have been UShs 1,574 million (2022: UShs 1,412 million) lower/higher, arising mainly as a result of
change in interest income and expense.
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3. Financial risk management (continued)

The above is tried to be achieved by development of overall standards for the bank to manage the risk in the following areas:
. Segregation of duties including independent authorisation of transactions

Manitaring and reconciliation of transactions

Compliance of regulatory and legal requirement

Documentation of control and procedure

Assessment of the operational risk on a periodic basis to address the deficiencies observed, if any

Reporting of operational losses and initiation of remedial action

Development of contingency plan

Giving training to staff to improve their professional competency

Ethical and business standards

Obtaining insurance wherever feasible, as a risk mitigation measure.

® = & & 8 = 8 & &

Risk measurement and control

Interest rate, currency, credit, liquidity and other risks are actively managed by management to ensure compliance with the
bank's risk limits. The bank’s risk limits are assessed regularly to ensure their appropriateness given its objectives and
strategies and current market conditions. A variety of techniques are used by the bank in measuring the risks inherent in its
trading and non-trading positions.
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3. Financial risk management (continued)

Currency risk

The Bank is exposed to currency risk through transactions in foreign currencies. The Bank's transactional exposures give rise
to foreign currency gains and losses that are recognised in the income statement. In respect of monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies, the Bank ensures that its net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying and selling foreign
currencies at spot rates when considered appropriate.

The significant currency positions are detailed below:

At December 31, 2023

Assets

Cash and balances with Bank

of Uganda

Due from group companies
Deposits and balances due
from other financial institutions
Loans and advances to

customers
Total assets

Liabilities

Customer deposits
Due to group companies
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net foreign currency exposure (156,350,723) (63,622)

Off-balance sheet items
Overall foreign currency

exposure

At December 31, 2022

Total assets
Total liabilities

Net foreign currency exposure
Off-balance sheet items

Overall foreign currency exposure

Exchange rates used for conversion of foreign items were:

US Dollar
GBP
Euro

INR

KSh

uspD GBP EURO KSHS Others Total
UShs '000 UShs'000 UShs "000 UShs '000 UShs '000 UShs '000
12,426,426 2,453 6,657 311 - 12,435,857
431,564 14,614 - - - 446,178
53,555,803 - 37,788 4,037 53,203 53,650,831
2,792,048 - - - - 2,792,048
69,205,841 17,077 44,445 4,348 53,203 69,324,914
165,342,229 80,699 1,202 - - 165,424,130
58,590,000 - B - - 58,590,000
1,624,335 - = - - 1.624,335
- 225,556,564 80,699 1,202 - - 225,638,465
43,243 4,348 53,203 (156,313,551)
(13,113,743) - - - (13,113,743)
(169,464,466) (63,622) 43,243 4,348 53,203 (169,427,294)
210,859,437 136,726 137,289 1,998 3,857 211,139,307
204,459,068 42,034 14,674 B - 204,515,776
6,400,369 94,692 122,615 1,998 3,857 6,623,531
(18,263,348) - - - - (18,263,346)
(11,862,977) 94,692 122,615 1,998 3,857 (11,639,815)
3,780 3,720
4,807 4,478
4177 3,962
45 45
24 30
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2023 2022
UShs ‘000 UShs '000

4. Interest income
Loans and advances 20,211,855 20,778,838
Treasury bonds 7.292,057 5,222,594
Treasury bills 5,609,210 3,498,163
Deposits and balances due from other financial institutions 3,778,998 1,870,169

36,892,120 31,369,764
5. Interest expense
Time deposits 13,959,643 10,783,620
Savings accounts 175,967 173,662
Current and demand deposits 36,429 37,843
Lease liabilities 225,763 193,946

14,397,802 11,189,071
6. Non-interest income
Fees and commission income 2945717 2,839,958
Recoveries in bad debts written off 3,773,433 #
Foreign exchange difference 592,300 448,029
Gain on derecognition of right-of-use-asset 248,238 -
Insurance recoveries 11,999 -
Gain on sale of property and equipment - 14,308

7,571,687 3,302,295

7. Operating expenses
Bad debts written off 11,819,710 1,392,119
Employee costs (note 8) 3,194,328 2,704,565
Telephone and fax 1,084,999 922,897
Staff welfare 740,841 230,041
Insurance 643,235 529,260
Fee charges 637,445 575,961
Depreciation (note 19) 623,708 1,489,055
Bank charges 380,803 237,819
Other expenses 372,662 312,150
Consulting and professional fees 310,551 25,661
Printing and stationery 224,398 143,155
Travelling 136,983 86,202
Subscriptions 122,293 261,876
Under provision penalty 118,060 -
Auditors remuneration 109,280 107,545
Rents and rates 106,111 95,338
Directors' emoluments 88,063 52,838
Repairs and maintenance 50,778 76,953
Advertising 44,796 94 843
Donations 10,988 10,062

20,820,032 9,348,340
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2023 2022
UShs '000 UShs "000

8. Employee costs

Salaries and wages 2,845,689 2,507,715
Other benefits 30,938 61,573
National social security fund contribution 317,701 135,277

3,194,328 2,704,565

9. Taxation

Major components of the tax expense

Current

Local income tax - current period 1,988,409 2,090,370

Withholding tax ("WHT") on investment income 2,406,035 1,744,152
4,394,444 3,834,522

Deferred

Originating and reversing temporary differences 1,818,048 (596,347)

6,212,492 3,238,175

Reconciliation of the tax expense

Reconciliation between accounting profit and tax expense.

Accounting profit 14,298,963 13,279,369

Tax at the applicable tax rate of 30% (2022: 30%) 4,289,689 3,983,811

Tax effect of adjustments on taxable income

Final tax (WHT) on investment income* 2,406,035 1,744,152

Prior period adjustments 471,723 105,005
Non-deductible expenses (954,955) (2,594,793)

6,212,492 3,238,175

*Withholding tax, which is currently at 20% on below 10 years and 10% on 10 years and above on interest income from
government securities (Treasury bills and bonds), is treated as final tax.

** Income not subject to tax relates to income earned on government securities that had already had withholding tax as a final
tax.

10. Cash and balances with Bank of Uganda

Cash on hand 3,374,668 3,165,894
Balances with Bank of Uganda 48,313,641 40,028,402

51,688,309 43,194,296

Balances with Bank of Uganda include the mandatory deposits which are advised fortnightly by the Central Bank based on the
deposit balances held for the past two weeks. The amount advised includes cash and balances held with Bank of Uganda and
this amount not available to finance the day to day activities of the Bank. Balances in excess of the advised amount is however
available to finance the Banks investment activities. As at December 31, 2023, the mandatory deposits were 9.5% of total
deposits (2022: 10% of total deposits).
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2023 2022
UShs '000 UShs '000

11. Investment in government securities

At amortised cost
Treasury bills 46,318,551 30,880,311
Treasury bonds 104,469,433 40,435,791

150,787,984 71,316,102

The Bank has not reclassified any financial assets from amortised cost to fair value, or from fair value to amortised cost during
the current or prior year.

As at the reporting date the bank pledged treasury bills of 364 days to UShs 5,776.5 million (2022: UShs 1,000 million ) with
Bank of Uganda

12. Due from group companies

Bank of India, London - GBP 14,614 134,432
Bank of India, New York - US Dollar 3,597,893 3,527,355
Bank of India, Paris - Euro 37,788 118,067
Bank of India, Nairobi - KSh 4,037 1,608
Bank of India, Mumbai - INR 53,203 3,857

3,707,535 3,785,319

13. Deposit and balances due from (to) other financial institutions

Due from other financial institutions in Uganda 51,880,858 53,227,599
Due to other financial institutions in Uganda (5,000,000) (12,000,000)

46,880,858 41,227,599

14. Loans and advances to customers

Qverdrafts 82,439,382 83,084,552
Term loans 115,488,006 109,619,700
Gross loans and advances to customers 197,927,388 192,704,252
Less: Impairment allowance (759,394) (5,311,255)
Less: Interest in suspense - (263,724)

197,167,994 187,129,273

Advances to customers include loans to employees of UShs 817 million (2022: UShs 646 million). The weighted average
effective interest rate on local currency loans and advances to customers as at December 31, 2023 was 17.02% (2022:
17.04%) and 10.05% (2022: 9.48%) for foreign currency loans and advances.

Reconciliation of impairment allowance for loans and advances and off balance exposure
All impaired loans have been written down to their estimated recoverable amount. The aggregate carrying amount of impaired

loans at December 31, 2023 was UShs 2,352 million (2022: UShs 11,517 million) on which nil provision (2022: UShs 4,432
million) is created because the loans are fully collateralised and hence recoverable in accordance with IFRS 9.
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2023

UShs '000

2022

UShs '000

14. Loans and advances to customers (continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of loan mentioned above. The

company does not hold any collateral as security.

Loans and advances Off balance
sheet
December 31, 2023 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Total
At start of the year 410,190 469,295 4431770 5,311,255 508,427 5,819,682
Transfer to stage 1 10,882 (10,882) - - - -
Transfer to stage 2 (26,037) 26,037 - - - -
Transfer to stage 3 - - - - - -
New financial assets / Established 307,091 45,156 E 352,247 289 352,536
Repayments / Reduction (125,452) (346,885) - (472,337) (501,419) (973,756)
Write-offs - (4,431,770) (4,431,770) - (4,431,770)
At the end of year 576,674 182,721 - 759,394 7,297 766,691
Loans and advances Off balance
sheet

December 31, 2022 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Total
At start of the year 621,739 52,703 3,781,534 4455976 508,427 4,964,403
Charge / (credit) to profit and loss (211,549) 416,592 650,236 855,279 B 855,279
At the end of year 410,190 469,295 4,431,770 5,311,255 508,427 5,819,682
15. Regulatory credit risk reserve
Al the start of the year 840,454 1,173,324
Movement 1,704,520 (332,870)
Closing balance 2,544,974 840,454
Provision as per Fl Act 2004 and as amended
Specific provision 1,338,479 4,270,012
General provision 1,965,889 1,881,697

3,304,368 6,151,709
Less; Impairment allowance under IFRS 9 759,394 5,311,255
Regulatory credit risk reserve 2,544,974 840,454

The regulatory reserve represents an appropriation from retained earnings to comply with Bank of Uganda's Prudential
Regulations. The balance in the reserve represents the excess of impairment provisions determined in accordance with the
Prudential Regulations over the impairment provisions recognized in accordance with the Bank's accounting policy. This

reserve is non-distributable.
16. Other assets

Prepayments

Security deposits
Clearing account
Other receivables

399,476 279,290
123,876 102,679
35,632 43,886
1,547,370 33,341
2,106,354 459,196
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2023 2022
UShs '000 UShs '000

17. Tax paid

Balance at beginning of the year (1,260,610) 585,941

Current tax for the year recognised in profit or loss (1988,409) (2,080,370)
Final tax on investment income (2406,035) (1,744,152)
Balance at end of the year 905,635 1,260,610

(4,749,419)  (1,987,971)

18. Deferred tax assets

Deferred income tax is calculated using the enacted income tax rate of 30% (2021: 30%). The movement on the deferred
income tax account is as follows:

Deferred tax asset 402,557 2,220,605

Reconciliation of deferred tax asset / (liability)

At beginning of year 2,220,605 1,624,258
Accrued interest expense disallowed 673,743 -
Leases (84,459) 102,868
Property and equipment (242,022) (41,073)
Impairment allowance (1,515,897) 507,326
Unrealised foreign exchange differences (177.690) 134,409
Prior period adjustments (471,723) (107,183)

402,557 2,220,605

Recognition of deferred tax asset

An entity shall disclose the amount of a deferred tax asset and the nature of the evidence supporting its recognition, when:
*  the utilisation of the deferred tax asset is dependent on future taxable profits in excess of the profits arising from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences; and
. the entity has suffered a loss in either the current or preceding period in the tax jurisdiction to which the deferred tax
asset relates.

19. Property, equipment and right-of-use assets

2023 2022
Cost Accumulated Carrying value Cost Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation depreciation
IT equipment 2,567,942 (2,333,187) 234,755 2,444 220 (2,195,961) 248,259
Office equipment 525,092 (414,122) 110,870 417 517 (385,481) 32,036
Electrical fittings 940,026 (685,694) 254,332 709,947 (646,943) 63,004
Furniture and fittings 869,222 (560,181) 309,041 586,886 (512,471) 74,415
Motor vehicles 223,000 (169,188) 53,812 160,000 (160,000) -
Right-of-use assets 7,746,288 (1,954 484) 5,791,804 9,839,932 (4,671,233) 5,168,699
Total 14,362,122 (7,607,408) 6,754,714 15,649,054 (10,062,641) 5,586,413
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UShs '000 UShs "000
19. Property, equipment and right-of-use assets (continued)
Reconciliation of property, equipment and right-of-use assets - 2023
Opening Additions Derecognition Depreciation Closing
balance balance
Furniture and fixtures 74,415 282,336 - (47,710) 309,041
Motor vehicles E 63,000 - (9,188) 53,812
Office equipment 32,036 107,575 - (28,641) 110,970
IT equipment 248,259 123,722 - (137,226) 234,755
Electrical fittings 63,004 230,079 - (38,751) 254,332
Right-of-use-assets 5,168,699 5,204,250 (4,218,953) (362,192) 5,791,804
5,586,413 6,010,962 (4,218,953) (623,708) 6,754,714
Reconciliation of property, equipment and right-of-use assets - 2022
Opening Additions Depreciation Closing
balance balance
IT equipment 192,247 155,702 (99,680) 248,259
Electrical fittings 43,239 40,549 (20,784) 63,004
Furniture and fittings 92,049 13,930 (31,564) 74,415
Office equipment 45,651 3,280 (16,895) 32,036
Motar vehicles - - - -
Right-of-use assets 6,096,420 392,401 (1,320,122) 5,168,699
6,469,606 605,862 (1,489,055) 5,586,413
20. Share capital
Authorised
12,000,000 Ordinary shares of UShs 10,000 each (2022: 2,700,000 Ordinary shares of 120,000,000 27,000,000
UShs 10,000 each
Reconciliation of number of shares issued:
Reported as at January 1, 2023 2,700,000 2,700,000
Conversion of retained earnings into capital 2,650,000 -
Conversion of share premium into capital 881,436 -
Infusion of additional capital 5,768,564 -
12,000,000 2,700,000
Issued and paid-up
Ordinary shares 120,000,000 27,000,000
Share premium 6 "
120,000,006 27,000,000
21. Due to group companies
Bank of India, USA 24,570,000 27,947,360
Bank of India, UK 34,020,000 29,802,542
58,590,000 57,749,902
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2023 2022

UShs '000 UShs '000
22. Customer deposits
Current and demand 42,386,178 30,247 511
Savings 24,665,529 25,238,587
Time deposits 179,967,016 164,854,081

247,018,723 220,340,179
23. Other liabilities
Lease liabilities (note 24) 5359,980 5,641,510
QOther payables 5630,373 2,923,461
Government dues payable 1,381,112 1,006,153
Accrued expenses 1,231,523 703,376
Impairment allowance on off-balance sheet items (note 14) 7,297 508,427
Bank cheques payable 26,991 26,991

13,637,276 10,809,918

24. |Lease liabilities

The Bank leases various branches and other premises under lease arrangements to meet its operational business
requirements. Currently, the bank does not have any material subleasing arrangements. Lease liabilities represents the
minimum lease payments under the lease, discounted at the incremental borrowing rate of the Bank

Minimum lease payments due
- within one year

- in second to fifth year inclusive
- later than five years

less: future finance charges
Present value of minimum lease payments

Present value of minimum lease payments due
- within one year

- in second to fifth year inclusive

- later than five years

Movement in lease liabilities
At the start of the year
Modifications

Interest expense

Lease payments during the year
Derecognition of leases

Foreign exchange differences

1,562,706 1,382,082
4,308,898 4,224,729
- 559,518
5,871,604 6,166,329
(511,624) (524,819)
5,359,980 5,641,510
1,689,546 1,221,791
3,670,434 3,865,934
- 553,785
5,359,980 5,641,510
5,641,510 6,223,267
5,204,250 392,401
225,762 193,948
(1,283,907)  (1,380,748)
(4,467,191) -
39,556 212,644
5,359,980 5,641,510
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2023 2022
UShs '000 UShs '000

25. Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and balances with Bank of Uganda (note 10) 51,688,309 43,194,296
Cash reserve requirement (28,980,000) (27,430,000)
Government securities maturing within 90 days from the date of acquisition - 5,873,546
Due from group companies (note 12) 3,707,535 3,785,319
Deposits and balances due from other financial insfitutions (note 13) 51,880,858 53,227,599

78,296,702 78,650,760

For the purposes of the statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than 90 days maturity
from the date of acquisition including: cash and balances with central banks, treasury bills and other eligible bills, and amounts
due from other banks. Cash and cash equivalents exclude the cash reserve requirement held with the Bank of Uganda.

Banks are required to maintain a prescribed minimum balance with the Bank of Uganda the usage of which is subject to
restrictions. The amount is determined as a percentage of the average outstanding deposits over a cash reserve cycle period
of two weeks.

26. Off balance sheet financial instruments, contingent liabilities and commitments

In common with other banks, the Bank conducts business involving acceptances, letters of credit, guarantees, performance
bonds and indemnities. The majority of these facilities are offset by corresponding obligations of third parties. In addition,
there are other off-balance sheet financial instruments including forward contracts for the purchase and sale of foreign
currencies, the nominal amounts for which are not reflected in the statement of financial position.

Contingent liabilities

letters of credit 8,089,205 6,527,117
Guarantees and acceptances 5,044,538 11,736,230

13,113,743 18,263,347

Commitments
Undrawn formal stand-by facilities, credit lines and other commitments to lend 33,303,655 20,557,161

33,303,655 20,557,161

Refer to note 23 for impairment allowance on off-balance sheet financial instruments, contingent liabilities and commitments.

Nature of contingent liabilities

Letters of credit, acceptances, guarantees and performance bonds are generally written by the Bank to support performance by
a customer to third parties. The bank will only be required to meet these obligations in the event of the customer’s default.
These obligations are accounted for as off balance sheet transactions and disclosed in contingent liabilities.

Contingent liabilities are secured by both cash and property collaterals.

Nature of commitments

Commitments to lend are agreements to lend to a customer in future subject to certain conditions. Such commitments are

normally made for a fixed period. The Bank may withdraw from its contractual obligation for the undrawn portion of agreed
overdraft limits by giving reasonable notice to the customer.
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UShs '000 UShs '000

27. Related parties
Relationships
Holding company

Affiliates

Members of key management

Related party transactions

Key management compensation
Non-Executive Directors
Executive Directors

Related party balances

Due from group companies
Bank of India, UK

Bank of India, USA

Bank of India, France

Bank of India, Kenya

Bank of India, India

Due to group companies
Bank of India, USA
Bank of India, UK

28, Commitments

Bank of India, India

Bank of India, USA

Bank of India, France

Bank of India, UK

Bank of India, Kenya

Bank of India, India

Vikash Krishna (up to March 3, 2023)

Ranjan Kumar (up to January 4, 2023)

Sameer Ranjan Behera (from January 5, 2023)
Sanjay Kumar Khemka (from March 4, 2023 up to
July 25, 2023)

Julius Kigundu (from July 25, 2023)

Nayenga Rosetti Nabbumba

Monica Mubezi Katiko

88,063 52,838
690,176 710,132
14,614 134,432
3,597,893 3,527,355
37,788 118,067
4,037 1,608
53,203 3,857

(24,570,000) (27,947,360)
(34,020,000) (29,802,542)

There were no material capital commitments in both current year and prior year.

29. Events after the reporting period

The management of the bank are not aware of any events after the reporting pericd which may have a significant impact on
the operational existence or on the financial performance of the Bank for the year,

30. Comparative figures

Previous year's figures have been reclassified/ regrouped in order to make them comparable with that of current financial

period, wherever necessary.
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